
         

 

 

VERONA WALK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

COLLIER COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 16, 2025 
10:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.veronawalkcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Town Center at Verona Walk 

8090 Sorrento Lane 
Naples, Florida 34114 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
October 16, 2025 

10:00 a.m. 
Call-In:  800-743-4099   Participant Passcode: 7423990 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………….…….Page 1 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. September 18, 2025 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………….Page 3 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No, 2025-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Amended Budget………Page 7 

2. Consider Resolution No, 2025-05 – Goals and Objectives Annual Report………………………..Page 13 

3. Consider Approval of Audit Renewal……………………………………………………………...Page 16 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. District Attorney Update 

2. District Engineer Update 

3. Field Inspector Update……………………………………………………………………...............Page 17 

4. District Manager Update 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 18 

b. Upcoming Meetings 

 November 20, 2025 & December 18, 2025 

J. Comments from the Public 

K. Board Member Comments 

L. Adjourn  



osta1T C000,
4

C6

o Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller - Crystal K. Kinzel

r Collier County, Florida
v 3315 Tamiami Trail East, Ste. 102 - Naples, FL 34112- 5324

o
Phone: ( 239) 252- 2646

414, 
COMP,  ,

04ti

Affidavit of Publication

COLLIER COUNTY STATE OF FLORIDA

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared
Martha Vergara, who on oath says that he or she is a

Deputy Clerk of the Circuit Court of Collier County,

Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement,

Verona Walk CDD ( Collier County) FY2025/ 2026

Meeting Schedule was published on the publically
accessible website https:// notices. collierclerk. com as

designated by Collier County, Florida on 10/ 05/ 2025
until 10/ 07/ 2025.

Affiant further says that the website complies with all

legal requirements for publication in chapter 50, Florida

Statutes.

t1\1\1: U\
AffiantSi n twre)\

i-'tr3r---4
4te44t tttt ii.     ,

e

f4t Printed ,.`.. ' .` i•

S.jvibrtiuto' nct utt¢ crsibed iSefore me this 10/ 07/ 2025

r FA G Q

t"7i
fry atiC.f it loelerk of the Circuit Court&
Coro t; 6110 .. 4       •

r

I....

r.

s     ,.

dr

id p`, tyl`] rk<
t

w{ 1itlire)
if

thqc i/- 11)--r\Cchr.fi 7  ) S

Deputy Clerk Printed Name)   Date

Page 1



VERONA WALK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2025/ 2026 MEETING SCHEDULE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Verona Walk Community
Development District will hold Regular Meetings at 10: 00 a. m. in the Town Center at Verona Walk

located at 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114, on the following dates:

October 16, 2025

November 20, 2025

December 18, 2025

January 15, 2026
February 19, 2026

March 19, 2026

April 16, 2026

May 21, 2026
June 18, 2026

July 16, 2026
August 20, 2026

September 17, 2026

The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.  Meetings are open to
the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law. Copies of the Agendas
for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District' s website or by contacting the District Manager
at ( 239) 444- 5790 and/ or toll free at 1- 877- 737- 4922 prior to the date of the particular meeting.

From time to time one or more Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, at the location of
these meetings there will be a speaker telephone present so that interested persons can attend the meetings
at the above location and be fully informed of the discussions taking place either in person or by telephone
communication.  Said meetings may be continued as found necessary to a date and time certain as stated
on the record.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these meetings,
such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure that a verbatim
record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record includes the testimony and
evidence on which the appeal is based.

In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special
accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the District
Manager at ( 239) 444- 5790 and/ or toll free at 1- 877- 737- 4922 at least seven ( 7) days prior to the date of
the particular meeting.

Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice.

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

www.veronawalkcdd.org

PUBLISH:    COLLIER COUNTY WEBSITE:   BEGINNING AT MIDNIGHT ON SUNDAY,

10/ 05/ 25 & EXPIRING AT MIDNIGHT ON TUES., 10/ 07/ 25

Page 2



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 18, 2025 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The September 18, 2025, Regular Board Meeting of the Verona Walk Community Development 
District (the “District”) was called to order at 10:00 a.m. at the Town Center at Verona Walk located 
at 8090 Sorrento Lane, Naples, Florida 34114.  
 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
C. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in 
the Naples Daily News on October 7, 2024, as legally required.  
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was 
in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairperson Marilyn Czubkowski Present 
Vice Chairman Peter Monti Present 
Supervisor Roger Roy Present 
Supervisor Jack Hogan Absent 
Supervisor Michael Kurzawski Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 

Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak Special District Services, Inc. 

District Engineer John Baker Bowman Engineering 

 
Also present were the following: 
 
District residents:  Jane Monti & Herb Czeschin. 
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  July 17, 2025, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting  
 

Page 3



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

The July 17, 2025, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Monti, seconded by Mr. Kurzawski and passed unanimously approving 
the minutes of the July 17, 2025, Public Hearing & Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS  
 1.  Update on CDD/HOA Maintenance Memo of Understanding 
 
Ms. Czubkowski advised that she had met with the HOA administration who are open to a 
maintenance agreement.  She stated that such an arrangement was not unusual and forwarded them a 
draft agreement which raised a lot of questions.  She added that the draft was more than a maintenance 
agreement as it also assigns duties, which they are not ready to agree to.  She continued that there 
were some questionable properties, which she spoke to the attorney about, and he recommends doing 
a title search on those properties to clarify boundaries. 
 
After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Monti, seconded by Mr. Roy and passed unanimously 
to perform title searches for a cost not-to-exceed $500.  
 
 2.  Update on Littoral Plantings – Peter Monti 
 
Mr. Monti advised that he was monitoring the plantings and many of the plants were doing very well.  
He added that he would like to see funding put in future budgets to continue the plantings. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Lake Bank Trimming Proposal 
 
Ms. Czubkowski stated that this was the third trimming of the year that was approved in the budget 
in the amount of $8,540. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Roy, seconded by Mr. Monti and passed unanimously approving the 
proposal, as presented. 
 
Mr. Monti asked about the signs and Mr. Hirniak stated that the plantings were on a slope and if 
ordered, there would be four maximum and they would be identical to the “No Swimming” signs.  
Ms. Czubkowski noted these were approved several meetings ago and they should be ordered as soon 
as possible.  Mr. Monti added that he was meeting with the landscape contractor and would reinforce 
it to keep people out of the littoral planting areas.   
 
 2.  Update on Lake Levels 
 
Mr. Hirniak stated that the levels were almost at their highest and were functioning as planned.  Mr. 
Monti asked that the Benchmark reports get sent to the Board Members regarding these lakes and Mr. 
Hirniak indicated he would provide the Board with the quarterly reports.  There was general 
discussion regarding the elevation of homes and lake levels with Mr. Hirniak noting that it would take 
more than IRMA for water to come up to homes.   
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding Spraying of Front Ponds 
 

Page 4



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Mr. Hirniak stated that the pump had been fixed and the water was circulating.  He further noted that 
the algae in the ponds had been reduced considerably by Premier.  He noted that the systems in 1&2 
were back in operation with Ms. Czubkowski adding that the pipe that was sticking out into the water 
had been removed.   
  
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  District Attorney Update 
 
There was no District Attorney update at this time. 
 
 2.  District Engineer Update 
 
Mr. Baker noted that there were two open items.  The first was the tree in the inlet, noting he had 
reached out to the engineer of Winding Cypress who recommended the attorney research to see if 
there was an easement to the property for maintenance.  Mr. Baker stated he would contact the 
attorney and do a bit more legwork on the issue, noting that the outfall box was in good condition. 
Mr. Baker continued that the second item was a plan for annual drainage inspections and repairs.  He 
stated that he would meet with Mr. Hirniak to identify the inlets and set up a cyclical three-year 
inspection plan that would rotate locations.  He explained that the inspection measures silt in the inlets 
and then videotaping is done if issues are found.  The spot check would then show if any cleaning 
were necessary which would be brought to the Board. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector Update 
 
Mr. Hirniak had nothing further to report but mentioned that if there are blockages in the system, it 
shows up quickly and he continues to monitor.  He explained that there have been very few issues 
after 20 years and the system was in good shape. 
 
 4.  District Manager Update 

 Financials 
 
Ms. Meneely went over the financials.   
 

 Upcoming Meetings 
 
Ms. Meneely noted that the next meetings were scheduled for October 16, 2025, and November 20, 
2025.  Messrs. Roy and Baker noted that they would not be available for the November meeting. 
 
J. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Ms. Czeschin noted that his street elevation was at 9.8 feet with Mr. Monti noting that was lower than 
the average 10 feet in front of properties. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
The Board Members had nothing further. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 5



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was adjourned 
at 10:36 a.m. on a motion made by Mr. Montie, seconded by Mr. Roy and that motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 6



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL 
YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT 
TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Verona Walk Community Development 
District (“District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to impose special assessments 
upon the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an Amended 
Budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 16th day of October, 2025. 
 

 

ATTEST: VERONA WALK 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 7



 Verona Walk 
 Community Development District

   Amended Final Budget For
   Fiscal Year 2024/2025

    October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



RESOLUTION NO.  2025-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
VERONA WALK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
ADOPTING AN ANNUAL REPORT OF GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND STANDARDS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Verona Walk Community Development District (the “District”) is a local 

unit of special-purpose government organized and existing under and pursuant to Chapters 189 
and 190, Florida Statutes, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2024, the Florida Legislature adopted House Bill 7013, 
codified as Chapter 2024-136, Laws of Florida, and creating Section 189.0694, Florida Statutes; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District adopted Resolution 2024-04 on August 15, 2024, establishing 
goals and objectives for the District and creating performance measures and standards to evaluate 
the District’s achievement of those goals and objectives; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 189.0694, Florida Statutes, the District must adopt and 
publish on its website an annual report prior to December 1st of each year, describing the goals and 
objectives achieved by the district, as well as the performance measures and standards used by the 
district to make this determination, and any goals or objectives the district failed to achieve.  
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has the annual report of the District’s goals, objectives, 
and performance measures and standards attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit A (the 
“Annual Report”) and presented the Annual Report to the Board of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best 
interests of the District to adopt by resolution the attached annual report of the goals, objectives 
and performance measures and standards. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE VERONA WALK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

  
 SECTION 1. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2. The District Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the Annual Report 
regarding the District’s success or failure in achieving the adopted goals and objectives and directs 
the District Manager to take all necessary actions to comply with Section 189.0694, Florida 
Statutes. 
 
 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

Page 13



 SECTION 4. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October, 2025.  
 
 
ATTEST:     VERONA WALK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
             

Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A: Annual Report of Performance Measures/Standards 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 14



Exhibit A 

Program/Activity:   District Administration 
Goal:    Remain compliant with Florida Law for all district meetings 
Objectives:    

 Notice all District regular, special, and public hearing meetings 
 Conduct all post-meeting activities  
 District records retained in compliance with Florida Sunshine Laws 

Performance Measures: 

 All Meetings publicly noticed as required (YES) 
 Meeting minutes and post-meeting action completed (YES) 
 District records retained as required by law (YES)     

Program/Activity:   District Finance 
Goal:    Remain Compliant with Florida Law for all district financing activities 
Objectives:     

 District adopted fiscal year budget 
 District amended budget at end of fiscal year 
 Process all District finance accounts receivable and payable 
 Support District annual financial audit activities 

Performance Measures: 

 District adopted fiscal year budget (YES) 
 District amended budget at end of fiscal year (YES) 
 District accounts receivable/payable processed for the year (YES) 
  “No findings” for annual financial audit (NO) 

o If “yes” explain 

Program/Activity:   District Operations 
Goal:    Insure, Operate and Maintain District owned Infrastructure & assets 
Objectives:     

 Annual renewal of District insurance policy(s) 
 Contracted Services for District operations in effect 
 Compliance with all required permits 

Performance Measures: 

 District insurance renewed and in force (YES) 
 Contracted Services in force for all District operations (YES) 
 Permits in compliance (YES) 

Page 15



 
 
 
 
 
October 16, 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
RE: Verona Walk Community Development District Auditor Renewal 
 
 
 
At the October 20, 2022, Verona Walk Community Development District Board Of 
Supervisors meeting, the firm of Grau & Associates was selected to perform the 9-30-
2022, 9-30-2023 and 9-30-2024 year end audits of the District with an option to perform 
the 9-30-2025 and 9-30-2026 audits.  
 
The fees for the 9-30-2022 audit was $4,000. The fees for the 9-30-2023 audit was 
$4,100. And the fees for the 9-30-2024 audit were $4,200. The proposed fees for the 9-
30-2025 audit is $4,300, which is more than the budgeted amount for audit fees for Fiscal 
Year 2024/2025. The proposed fee for the 9-30-26 audit is $4,400. 
 
Management is pleased with the professionalism and the competence of the Grau & 
Associates partners and staff; therefore, management recommends that the Board 
approve the renewal option for the Fiscal Year Ending 9-30-2025 and 9-30-2026 audits 
for Grau & Associates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Special District Services, Inc. 

Page 16



From: bphirniak@aol.com <bphirniak@aol.com> 
Sent: Thursday, October 9, 2025 11:17 AM 
To: Kathleen Meneely <kmeneely@sdsinc.org> 
Subject: Monthly Field Report  
  
Kathleen-- to wit: 
 
1) Very little, if any, erosion.  Water quality remains good. Littoral health also remains 
good. 
 
2) Outfall capacity and operations good and as designed, 
 
3) Lake levels have dropped about 2 feet since last report.  Rains have backed off. 
 
4) Lake bank mowing/trimming is now ongoing and those areas treated look 
good.  About 50% has been completed. 
 
5) Quarterly water sampling results from Benchmark indicate continuing  good quality. 
 
6) No major contractor work under way. 
 
7) No swimming pools are currently under construction. 
 
8) Home on Salerno doing rain drain system update.  Have met with homeowner to 
discuss impact of work on adjacent CDD system.  Owner duly advised. 
 
9) Rains have now abated somewhat. 
 
10) "No Mowing" signs have been discussed with contractor.  Sample will soon be 
available for approval. 
 

Page 17



Verona Walk
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
September 2025

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27


	Verona Walk Community Development District - October 16, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	September 18, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No, 2025-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Amended Budget
	Consider Resolution No, 2025-05 – Goals and Objectives Annual Report
	Consider Approval of Audit Renewal
	Field Inspector Update
	Financials




